
 
 
City of Lake Alfred  Phone:  (863) 291‐5270 
120 E. Pomelo Street  Fax: (863) 291‐5317 
Lake Alfred, FL  33850    www.mylakealfred.com 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY NOVEMBER 16, 2015 
7:30 P.M. 

CITY HALL 

 
CALL TO ORDER: MAYOR CHARLES LAKE 
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  PASTOR STRAWN 

ROLL CALL: CITY CLERK AMEÉ BAILEY 
 
CITY MANAGER & CITY ATTORNEY ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
RECOGNITION OF CITIZENS: ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA 
 

CITY COMMISSION SCHEDULE DISCUSSION 
EMPLOYEE SERVICE RECOGNITION: VALENTINE VILLARREAL – 5 YEARS 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

 
1.) CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES FOR NOVEMBER 2, 2015. 
2.) CITY COMMISSION ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

AGENDA 
  

1.) PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE 1360-15: FINAL BUDGET AMENDMENT FY 
2014/2015 

2.) DISCOVERY ACADEMY PARKING EXEMPTION 
 

 
 

RECOGNITION OF CITIZENS (PLEASE LIMIT YOUR COMMENTS TO 5 MINUTES.)   
 
COMMISSIONER QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS: 
 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY 
MAYOR LAKE  
VICE MAYOR DALEY 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN 
 
 
ADJOURN 



City of Lake Alfred 
2016 Proposed  

City Commission Public Meeting Schedule 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

Weekday  Date  Time  Description 

Monday  January 4  7:30pm   

Tuesday  January 19  7:30pm  Change due to holiday 

Monday  February 1  7:30pm   

Monday  February 15  7:30pm   

Monday  March 7  7:30pm   

Monday  March 21  7:30pm   

Monday  April 4  7:30pm   

Monday  April 18  7:30pm   

Monday  May 2  7:30pm   

Monday  May 16  7:30pm   

Monday  June 6  7:30pm   

Monday  June 20  7:30pm   

Monday  July 11  7:30pm  Change due to holiday 

Monday  July 25  7:30pm   

Monday  August 1  7:30pm   

Monday  August 15  7:30pm   

Tuesday  Sept 6  7:30pm  Change due to holiday also subject to 
change due to budget schedule 

Monday  Sept 19  7:30pm  Subject to change due to budget schedule 

Monday  October 3  7:30pm   

Monday  October 17  7:30pm   

Monday  Nov 7  7:30pm   

Monday  Nov 21  7:30pm  Week of Thanksgiving 

Monday  Dec 5  7:30pm   

Monday  Dec 19  7:30pm   
 
 



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
NOVEMBER 16, 2015 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 

1.) NOVEMBER 2, 2015 CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Draft Minutes 
 

ANALYSIS:  Please review the minutes at your earliest convenience and if there are any 
questions, comments or concerns please contact the City Clerk, Ameé Bailey at (863) 291-
5747. 
 

 
 

2.) CITY COMMISSION ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 
ANALYSIS:  Each of the meetings/ events scheduled below may constitute a public meeting at 
which two or more City Commissioners or Planning Board Members may attend and discuss 
issues that may come before the City Commissioners.    
 

 The Florida League of Cities Legislative Policy Committee Meetings will be held on Friday 
November 20, 2015 at 10:30 am the Embassy Suites Orlando Lake Buena Vista during 
the 55th Annual Legislative Conference. 

 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the consent agenda. 
 
 



DRAFT 
Page 1 of 8 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 
CITY OF LAKE ALFRED 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2015 

7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL 

 
Call to Order: Mayor Charles Lake 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance: Joyce Schmidt 
 
Roll Call: Those in attendance were Mayor Charles Lake, Vice Mayor Nancy Daley, 
Commissioner John Duncan, Commissioner Jack Dearmin, Commissioner Albertus Maultsby, 
City Manager Ryan Leavengood, City Attorney Frederick John Murphy, and City Clerk Ameé 
Bailey-Speck.   
 
Staff attendance: Police Chief Art Bodenheimer, Community Development Director Valerie 
Ferrell, Finance Director Amber Deaton, Public Works Director John Deaton, and Parks and 
Recreation Director Richard Weed. 
 
CITY MANAGER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated Mackay Gardens and Lakeside Preserve will host a free 
community gardening workshop on November 5th at 10 am, a guided nature walk on October 8th 
at 2 pm, and Astronomy Night on November 14th at 7 pm.  Contact the Parks and Recreation 
Department for more details or to sign-up for one of these events. 
 
The Good Old Days festival will be held on November 7th from 3 pm to 7 pm at the Lions Park.  
The event will feature family friendly events, old-fashioned food and activities, Antique car show, 
Buddy Canova, and fireworks.   
 
City Offices and the library will be closed Wednesday, November 11th in observance of Veterans 
Day. 
 
On November 11th at 11 am the Cities of Lake Alfred and Auburndale will honor all those who 
served the arms forces.  Please join us for this Veterans Day event at the Veterans Memorial, 
Frank C. Gardner Park. 
 
The SPCA Wellness Wagon will visit the Lake Alfred Library on Saturday November 14th from 8 
till 10:30 am, offering vaccines and testing for every pet.  Please contact the Library for more 
information. 
 
The Parks and Recreation Department is now accepting applications for the 2015 Lake Alfred 
Christmas Parade. Applications are due by November 20th.  The application and more 
information can be found on the website or by calling the Parks and Recreation Department. 
 
 



DRAFT 
Page 2 of 8 

 

City Manager Leavengood also provided an pictures and updates on the resurfacing project 
on Hwy 557, new deck at Lions Park, and landscaping in the medians along Mackay Blvd. He 
also thanked Judy Schelfo for her efforts with several city events during the centennial year. 
 

CITY ATTORNEY ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
No announcements.  
 

RECOGNITION OF CITIZENS 
 
Jean Breton, 370 S. Echo Drive thanked the City for Code Enforcement actions in Echo 
Terrace.  She asked about the process now that the homes are labeled as a hazard. She also 
asked about the vegetation covering the drain near the dock.   
 
City Manager Leavengood discussed Code Enforcement, Special Magistrate, and abatement 
process.  He explained that the process takes time and money, although the City could recoup 
the cost through a property lien.  He also responded that the Echo Terrace dock will be added to 
the list for vegetation spraying.   
 
Marilyn Anderson, 250 East Columbia St, representing the Lake Alfred Lion Club invited staff 
and citizens to the Lions 70th Anniversary celebration on Sunday November 15th. There will be 
an open house from 2-6 pm.  Hot hors d’oeuvres will be served.  Everyone is invited to share 
memories.   
 
PROCLAMATION – POLK COUNTY FAMILY WEEK 
 
Mayor Lake read the proclamation recognizing November 14th - 20th as Polk County Family 
Week and urged all families to unite, honor and celebrate together.  He presented the 
proclamation to Mr. and Mrs. Kendrick. 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Kendrick discussed Family Week events that are free to the public. 
 
PROCLAMATION:  VETERANS DAY 
 
Mayor Lake read the proclamation recognizing November 11th as Veterans Day and 
encouraged all citizens recognize the valor and sacrifice of our Veterans through this public 
ceremony at Frank C. Gardner Park and private prayers. 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

 
Commissioner Dearmin moved to approve the October 19th meeting minutes and Commission 
announcements; seconded by Commissioner Maultsby and the motion was approved by 
unanimous voice call vote. 
 
MAYOR LAKE    AYE 
VICE MAYOR DALEY   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY  AYE 



DRAFT 
Page 3 of 8 

 

AGENDA 
 

 
1.) ORDINANCE 1359-15: TRAVEL & PER DIEM POLICY 
 
City Attorney Frederick John Murphy read the ordinance title.   
 
City Manager Leavengood stated as a part of a comprehensive review of City codes and 
policies, city staff has identified an opportunity to clean up and update the City’s travel and per 
diem policy. The current policy was adopted back in 2007 and provided for up to a $60 per day 
reimbursement for meals and incidental expenses as well as the IRS mileage reimbursement for 
use of personal vehicles. 
 
The proposed ordinance removes the fixed per day reimbursement and ties the total per diem 
allowance to the Meals and Incidental Expenses (M&IE) breakdown published by the General 
Services Administration (GSA). Similar to the IRS mileage reimbursement, this allows for the 
per diem allowance to scale with inflation or deflation and makes it consistent with federal 
agency travel guidelines and other governmental agencies that utilize the GSA’s standards. 
 
Staff recommended approval of Ordinance 1359-15 on second and final reading. 
 
Commissioner Maultsby moved to approve Ordinance No. 1359-15 on second and final 
reading; seconded by Commissioner Dearmin. The motion was approved by unanimous voice 
call vote.  There were no citizen statements. 
 
 
MAYOR LAKE    AYE 
VICE MAYOR DALEY   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY  AYE 
 
 
2.) ORDINANCE 1360-15: FINAL BUDGET AMENDMENT FY 2014/2015 
 
City Attorney Frederick John Murphy read the ordinance title.   
 
City Manager Leavengood stated as a part of the closeout process of the previous fiscal year 
of 2014/2015 the City is required to submit an amended budget that includes any changes 
made from the original budget. These changes can include unanticipated projects, expenses, or 
revenues that were not included; or changes to existing line items that did not meet exact 
revenue or expenditure projections. The proposed budget adjustment accounts for these 
changes with the net changes in fund balance for each fund as follows: the General Fund 
closed at $65,693 positive, Enterprise Fund 39,104 positive, and Stormwater Fund 22,263 
negative.  The changes in the Stormwater Fund were due to the City paying for the design and 
engineering for the stormwater issue at Cummings.  The details of the fund changes were 
included as part of the ordinance and briefly reviewed.   
 



DRAFT 
Page 4 of 8 

 

Staff recommended approval of Ordinance 1360-15 on first reading.  If approved, the ordinance 
will be presented for second reading at the November 19th Commission meeting 
 
The Commission asked about restrictive verses non-restricted funds. 
 
Staff responded the summary is simplified but does include both restrictive and non-restricted 
funds.  Some restricted funds have been used to pay off a debit and will now be placed in a 
reserve account.   
 
Vice Mayor Daley moved to approve Ordinance 1360-15 on first reading the Final Budget 
Amendment which includes General Fund t $65,693 positive, Enterprise Fund 39,104 positive, 
and Stormwater Fund 22,263 negative; seconded by Commissioner Duncan. The motion was 
approved by unanimous voice call vote.  There were no citizen statements. 
 
MAYOR LAKE    AYE 
VICE MAYOR DALEY   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY  AYE 
 
3.) AGREEMENT: THE LAKES DEVELOPMENT   
 
City Manager Leavengood stated that under Florida Statute, Sections 163.3220 through 
163.3243 the City has the authority to enter into development agreements with developers.  The 
development agreement is regarded as supplemental and additional to the powers conferred upon 
the City by other laws (i.e. zoning, concurrency, development approvals, etc.).  The Lakes of Lake 
Alfred was first approved in concept in 2004. The total development encompassed 8 individual 
tracts totaling approximately 589 homes. Tracts 1-3 have been successfully platted and almost 
completely developed.  Prior to foreclosure proceedings, Tract 4a was platted and infrastructure 
was partially complete in January 2007.  The Planning Board and City Commission acknowledged 
that a new owner wished to proceed with the future Tracts 4, 5, 6 and 7 as a separate development 
project. Therefore, both Planning Board and City Commission approved a Development 
Agreement for this half of The Lakes, now referred to as The Lakes II.  Due to market conditions, 
the new owner, WM SUB LA, LLC, is requesting to plat an additional 13 lots, referred to as Tract 
4A. During this review process, it was noted that some items were not adequately addressed in 
The Lakes II Development Agreement. The amendment proposes the following: 
 
 Tracts 4 and 4A will develop within the parameters of the existing R-1A for cluster zoning 

maximum density of 4.2 units per acre, and future Tracts 5 and 6 will develop within the 
parameters of R-1AA for cluster zoning with a maximum density of 3.6 units per acre, all 
in accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and the Unified Land Development 
Code.  

 Owner will dedicate open space pursuant to cluster subdivision regulations. The open 
space tract is approximately 11 acres on the east side of the canal between Lakes 
Haines and Rochelle. The property is mostly wetlands and will be dedicated to the City 
prior to any issuance of Certificates of Occupancy in Tracts 5 or 6. A new page three 
was provided to the Commission for clarification that the bridge will be conveyed to the 
City for access to an additional eleven acres.   



DRAFT 
Page 5 of 8 

 

 Owner will grant access to the City via easement to the lift station on Tract 7.  This will 
provide half of the access now and then the other half as part of Tract 8 which is owned 
by Mr. Schapiro. Transfer ownership of lift station to City to occur prior to any issuance 
of Certificates of Occupancy in Tracts 5 or 6. 

 Owner will complete construction according to approved plans for Tract 4 and Tract 4A. 
The owner has secured its obligations for the improvements by posting a Subdivision 
Bond for $152,772.00 which will adequately cover costs of remaining improvements. 

 
Staff recommended approval of the amendment to the Development Agreement with the 
changes on page 3.  The Planning Commission recommendation was also for approval. 
 
Chris Forbes represented the owner/developer of WM SUB LA and Walton Development 
Management which owns the 13 lots, Tracts 5-7, and the eleven acres.  He agreed with the 
proposed changes on page 3.   
 
The City Commission discussed the transfer of development rights, the bridge, and 
easements.  They asked about a future trail through Tract 6 to connect to Ramona. The 
development review process and the Commission’s role was also discussed.   
 
Chris Forbes responded that a walking trail was identified in Plat 4 which connects to the 
elementary school.  The site is actively under construction to complete the 13 lots.  
Development of Tracts 5 and 6 are completely separate and will require additional work and 
discussion to address several items.   
 
Staff responded that the trail could be discussed during the processing of Tract 5 and 6.  The 
Commission could have a workshop on proposed developments to provide comments earlier in 
the process.   
 
Vice Mayor Daley moved to approve the amendment to the Development Agreement for The 
Lakes 2 Development with the additional condition on the bridge and conveyance; seconded by 
Commissioner Maultsby. The motion was approved by unanimous voice call vote.  There 
were no citizen statements. 
 
 
MAYOR LAKE    AYE 
VICE MAYOR DALEY   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY  AYE 
 
4.) RESOLUTION 11-15: THE LAKES II TRACT 4A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT 
 
City Attorney Frederick John Murphy read the resolution title.   
 
City Manager Leavengood stated the proposed final plat is planned as a 13-lot subdivision on 
approximately 4 acres, located east of Glencruiten Avenue and northeast of MacKay Boulevard. 
The site is to be developed as a single family detached subdivision under the existing R-1A 
cluster zoning district consistent with the other lots within the subdivision. The required open 
space has been addressed in the development agreement presented in the previous item. 



DRAFT 
Page 6 of 8 

 

 
The site will be accessible by Glencruiten Avenue and Mackay Boulevard. The City has 
accepted Mackay Boulevard and no additional improvements are necessary. All internal right-of-
ways are incomplete, and need a final lift of asphalt. The internal rights-of-ways will be 
dedicated to the City once constructed according to City standards and inspected by City staff 
and consulting engineers. 
 
Staff recommended approval of Resolution 11-15. 
 
Commissioner Dearmin moved to approve Resolution 11-15; seconded by Commissioner 
Duncan the motion was approved by unanimous voice call vote.  There were no citizen 
statements. 
 
 
MAYOR LAKE    AYE 
VICE MAYOR DALEY   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY  AYE 
 
5.) PURCHASE: SANITATION VEHICLE 
 
City Manager Leavengood stated included in the presentation of the in-house curbside 
recycling program city staff identified the need to eventually increase the size of the sanitation 
fleet to account for the loss of flexibility in moving to a 5-day a week pickup schedule with a 
single side loader. The proposed plan was to purchase a side loader when the sanitation vehicle 
reserve account grew large enough to purchase a new side loader (in 2 years) or to make 
purchase sooner if city staff could find a good deal on a lightly used side loader that met our 
specifications. 
 
The proposed purchase is a 2007 side loading sanitation truck with low mileage (60,000), a 
newly rebuilt arm, and is consistent with our needs and specifications. The truck will be used for 
pickup of recyclable materials twice a week. This will extend the service life of the current side 
loading garbage truck that was purchased in 2013 that also has approximately 60,000 miles. 
The added vehicle will also allow for flexibility with the holiday pickup schedule, allow for 
maintenance of the vehicles without creating a lapse in service, and reduce any weekend 
overtime for general cleaning and upkeep of the side loading garbage truck (i.e. the current side 
loading vehicle that is running 5 days a week).  The City currently has only the one side loading 
truck and is in need a second even before the City began recycling.   
 
Approximately $152,000 is currently set aside in restricted sanitation vehicle reserves to 
accommodate the purchase. It is unlikely that the City will need a sanitation replacement vehicle 
for 5 or more years which will give ample time for the reserve account to rebuild (at $50,000 per 
year).  The increased operational expenses for fuel and repair & maintenance have already 
been included in the sanitation division’s line items for the current FY 15/16 Budget to account 
for the additional service days associated with curbside recycling. 
 
City staff received the following bids for the purchase: 
 
 JLM: 2007 Condor (63,000 miles): $69,975 
 RDK: 2004 Mack LE613 (59,000 miles): $65,000 



DRAFT 
Page 7 of 8 

 

 RDK: 2010 Autocar (91,000 miles): $92,500 
 
Staff recommended approval of purchasing the 2007 Condor sanitation truck from JLM 
equipment for $69,975. 
 
The City Commission asked about the specific vehicle requested including the paint color, how 
it is driven, warranties, service, delivery, and life expectancy.  They asked if staff had driven or 
inspected the vehicle and for comparisons with purchasing a new vehicle (cost, life expectancy, 
etc.). 
 
Staff responded that the vehicle will be painted to match the City Fleet.  The arm will be 
refurbished and have a limited warrant.  The vehicle was solicited through a broker and has 
been inspected.   The vehicle has the same specs as the current vehicle with a passenger side 
driver’s seat.  The cost of a new vehicle is $250,000 with a 4-5 year life expectancy if run daily.  
Running two trucks will extend the life of the fleet approximately 6-7 years before another 
vehicle would need to be purchased. Service is performed daily on the existing vehicle, but 
there is limited time for a complete service.  A second vehicle will allow for proper maintenance.   
The arms generally need replacing every two years.  The vehicle is from Conway Arkansas, but 
is now in Lake Wales, which is also where it would be serviced.  Staff will inspect and drive the 
vehicle prior to any purchase.  Delivery could occur within two weeks of approval. 
 
Commissioner Dearmin moved to approve purchase the 2007 Condor sanitation truck from 
JLM equipment for $69,975; seconded by Commissioner Duncan. The motion was approved 
by unanimous voice call vote.  There were no citizen statements. 
 
 
MAYOR LAKE    AYE 
VICE MAYOR DALEY   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DEARMIN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER DUNCAN   AYE 
COMMISSIONER MAULTSBY  AYE 
 
 

RECOGNITION OF CITIZENS 
 
No Citizen comments. 
 

COMMISSIONER QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
 
Commissioner Maultsby asked about additional sidewalk connections for the Buena Vista to 
Lake Swoope area where there are gaps.  He also asked about grant opportunities.   
 
City Manager Leavengood stated he would work with Mr. Maultsby to determine route and 
gaps.  Recently completed the sidewalk around Gardner Park.   The City can look at additional 
Safe Routes to School grants and City funding.   
 
Mayor Lake mentioned several events that he and other Commissioners will attend over the 
next two weeks including: Halloween events, School Summit, Lake Alfred Addair safety meeting 
and their need for volunteers for the Great American Teach-In Nov 18th, reception for a new Fed 



DRAFT 
Page 8 of 8 

 

Ex Facility, Good ole Days Festival, Transportation Disadvantaged Committee Meeting, 
Legislative Lunch, Veterans Day, Energy and Disaster Response Training, Habitat Volunteer 
Lunch, and the Regional Water Cooperative meeting. 
 
Vice Mayor Daley mentioned the Legislative Conference by the Florida League of Cities and 
the policy committee meetings on Nov. 20th.  She attended the School Summit and discussed 
the debt service for schools and the lack of income for new schools.  She also asked if the City 
Manager could write a “Thank you” to School Board members for support of Discovery High 
School.  She attended the Ridge Art Reception and likes having the new art City Hall.  Lastly, 
she thanked the Police Chief for his involvement during Halloween and trick or treating.   
 
Commissioner Duncan thanked Lion’s Club for supporting baseball and will invite them to the 
celebration.   
 
Commissioner Dearmin stated he is proud of the City and staff.   
 
 
With there being no further business to discuss, Mayor Lake adjourned the meeting at 8:41 pm. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Ameé N. Bailey 
City Clerk 



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
NOVEMBER 16, 2015 

 
1.) PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE 1360-15: FINAL BUDGET AMENDMENT  

FY 2014/2015 
 
 

ISSUE: The City of Lake Alfred will consider approval of ordinance 1360-15 for the fiscal year 
2014/2015 final budget amendment on second and final reading. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Ordinance 1360-15  
 Summary Sheet 
 Exhibit “A” FY 14/15 Budget Adjustment 

 
 
ANALYSIS: As a part of the closeout process of the previous fiscal year of 2014/2015 the City 
is required to submit an amended budget that includes any changes made from the original 
budget. These changes can include unanticipated projects, expenses, or revenues that were not 
included; or changes to existing line items that did not meet exact revenue or expenditure 
projections. The proposed budget adjustment accounts for these changes with the net changes 
in fund balance for each fund presented below: 
 

 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Ordinance 1360-15 on second and final reading. 
 
 
  



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1360-15                              Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1360-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, 
FLORIDA AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE CITY FOR 
THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2014 
AND  ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015; AMENDING THE 
APPROPRIATIONS, ALLOCATIONS OF REVENUE AND 
EXPENDITURES OF THE CITY FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2014-2015; PROVIDING FOR THE ADMINISTRATIVE 
CORRECTION OF SCRIVENER’S ERRORS, 
CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2.12 of the Charter of the City of Lake Alfred and the 
general laws of the State of Florida, an amended budget of estimated revenues and 
expenditures and complete financial plan of all City funds and activities for Fiscal Year 2014-
2015 has been prepared and reviewed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Commission is of the opinion that all items of anticipated revenues 
and expenditures for said fiscal year are reasonable and proper for the administration of the 
affairs of and the proper conduct of the business of the City of Lake Alfred; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after further review, the City Commission desires to amend said budget as 
set forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED by the People of the City of Lake Alfred, Florida, 
as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1:  AMENDMENT That there is hereby adopted an amended budget for 
Fiscal Year 2014-2015 for the City of Lake Alfred, Florida, for the period beginning October 1, 
2014 and ending September 30, 2015, as set forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 SECTION 2: BUDGET That a complete copy of the entire budget for Fiscal Year 
2014-2015 consisting of estimated revenues and expenditures, as amended, is available for 
inspection in the office of the City Clerk, and a copy of the same is attached to this ordinance as 
Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 SECTION 3:  SCRIVENER’S ERROR Any scrivener’s error created as a result of 
the passage of this ordinance may be corrected by the City Manager, without further legislative 
action, so long as the intent of this ordinance is preserved, by filing a revised copy thereof with 
the City Clerk’s office with the terms “Manager Revised” and the revision version number in the 
style of the ordinance. 
 
 SECTION 4:  CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with any 
provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
 SECTION 5:  SEVERABILITY. If any section or portion of a section of this 
ordinance proves not valid, unlawful or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or 
impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or part of this ordinance. 
 



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance No. 1360-15                              Page 2 of 2 
 

SECTION 6:  EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall become effective immediately 
upon final passage. 

 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED ON FIRST READING the 2nd day of November, 2015. 

 
PASSED AND ENACTED ON SECOND READING, with a quorum present and voting, 

by the City Commission of Lake Alfred, Florida this 16th day of November, 2015. 
  
 
 
      CITY OF LAKE ALFRED, FLORIDA 
      CITY COMMISSION 
 
 

________________________________ 
      Charles O. Lake, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Amee Bailey-Speck  
City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Frederick J. Murphy, Jr., City Attorney 
 
 



EXHIBIT "A"

to

ORDINANCE 1360‐15

General Fund Original Actual Variance

4,129,720$             4,616,558$         486,838$             

Highlights: Tax Revenue 96,322

Licenses & Permits Revenue 155,529

Franchise Fees 63,432

Sanitation 26,380

Centennial (16,867)               

New Sanitation Cans & Recycling Decals (20,566)                Restricted Revenue

Public Safety Bldg Improvements (40,901)                Impact Fees

Christmas Lights (59,862)               

Way Finding Signs (80,918)               

Land Swap with IFAS (98,469)               

Net Change 65,693                 

Enterprise Original Actual Variance

2,116,500$             2,499,164$         382,664$             

Highlights: Water Meter Fee 88,500

Sludge Hauling (17,757)               

Chemicals (22,409)               

Grove Irrigation Relocaton ( IFAS) (35,880)               

New Meters for New Construction (78,270)                Offset by Revenue

Out Post Project ( 17‐92) (183,826)              Impact Fees

Net Change 39,104                 

Stormwater Original Actual Variance

55,000$                   77,263$               22,263$               

Cummings St. Stormwater Design (22,263)                Restricted Reserves

Net Change (22,263)               

Budget Adjustment for Year Ending 14/15



BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FISCAL YEAR 14/15

ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

GENERAL FUND TAXES

001.000.0.311.110 Ad Valorem Taxes ‐ (M) 968,250                      986,370                  18,120                 

001.000.0.312.300 9th Cent Gas Tax ‐ (M) 20,000                        25,785                    5,785                   

001.000.0.312.410 Local Option Gas Tax ‐ (M/S) 124,240                      131,528                  7,288                   

001.000.0.312.420 5th Cent Gas Tax ‐ (M/S) 76,780                        82,534                    5,754                   

001.000.0.312.520 Casualty Insurance Tax ‐(A) 31,535                        32,132                    597                      

001.000.0.314.100 Electric Service Tax ‐ (M) 290,000                      335,426                  45,426                 

001.000.0.314.300 Water Service Tax ‐ (M) 48,000                        52,764                    4,764                   

001.000.0.312.510 Insurance Premium Tax ‐ (A) 21,000                        26,391                    5,391                   

001.000.0.314.800 Propane Service Tax ‐ (M) 13,000                        12,128                    (872)                     

001.000.0.315.000 Local Communications Tax ‐ (M/S) 125,830                      122,343                  (3,487)                 
001.000.0.335.180 Half‐Cent Sales Tax ‐ (M/S) 282,475                      290,031                  7,556                   

Total Taxes 2,001,110                  2,097,432               96,322                 

LICENSES AND PERMITS

001.000.0.321.110 Business Tax 12,000                        11,316                    (684)                     

001.000.0.322.025 Remittance Fee 1,000                          12,530                    11,530                 

001.000.0.322.200 Education Fee 1,000                          1,798                       798                      

001.000.0.322.100 Alarm Permit 125                              200                          75                        

001.000.0.349.322 Building Inspections 600                              768                          168                      

001.000.0.322.300 Archive Fee 1,000                          1,798                       798                      

001.000.0.354.000 Liens ‐ Violation of Ordinance 10,000                        14,702                    4,702                   

001.000.0.354.100 Lien Searches 2,000                          3,154                       1,154                   
001.000.0.322.000 Building Permits 45,000                        181,988                  136,988              

Total Licenses & Permits 72,725                        228,254                  155,529              

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

001.000.0.335.120 State Revenue Sharing ‐(M/S) 123,695                      132,004                  8,309                   

001.000.0.335.122 8th Cent Motor Fuel Tax ‐ (M/S 50,570                        53,969                    3,399                   

001.000.0.335.140 Mobile Home Licenses ‐ (M) 15,000                        16,026                    1,026                   

001.000.0.335.150 Alcohol Beverage Lic ‐ (Q) 3,000                          1,907                       (1,093)                 

001.000.0.334.220 Grant ‐ Police ‐ JAGC 10,190                        10,193                    3                           

001.000.0.331.200 Grant ‐ Police ‐ JAGD ‐                               1,215                       1,215                   

001.000.0.334.260 Right of Way Maint ‐ (Q) 30,000                        27,263                    (2,737)                 

001.000.0.334.710 Signal Maint ‐(A) 2,700                          3,541                       841                      

001.000.0.334.952 Street Lights Maint ‐(A) 20,640                        21,262                    622                      

001.000.0.337.210 SRO Supplement ‐(Q) 100,650                      101,275                  625                      

001.000.0.338.350 Library Cooperative ‐(Q/A) 25,000                        29,173                    4,173                   
001.000.0.342.340 Mutual Fire ‐ (Q/A) 190,805                      189,343                  (1,462)                 

Total Intergovernmental 572,250                      587,171                  14,921                 

FRANCHISE FEES

001.000.0.323.100 Electric FF ‐ (M) 240,000                      318,130                  78,130                 

001.000.0.323.400 Gas FF ‐ (M) 32,000                        19,097                    (12,903)               
001.000.0.323.700 Solid Waste FF ‐ (M) 22,000                        20,205                    (1,795)                 

Total Franchise Fees 294,000                      357,432                  63,432                 

Page 1 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

001.000.0.341.200 Zoning Fees 2,500                          2,023                       (477)                     

001.000.0.341.041 Library Printing 3,000                          3,938                       938                      

001.000.0.341.050 Notary Services 200                              141                          (59)                       

001.000.0.341.040 Copies & Research 500                              60                            (440)                     

001.000.0.343.800 Cemetery Sales 10,000                        10,200                    200                      

001.000.0.347.208 Summer Rec Program 20,000                        20,226                    226                      

001.000.0.349.030 Filing Fee‐City Election 150                              72                            (78)                       
001.000.0.349.528 Police Reports & Services 1,000                          825                          (175)                     

Total Charges for Services 37,350                        37,485                    135                      

SANITATION

001.000.0.343.400 Recycling 48,000                        48,515                    515                      

001.000.0.343.300 Sanitation ‐ (M) 305,000                      318,476                  13,476                 

001.000.0.343.301 Extra Trash Pickup 1,500                          321                          (1,179)                 

001.000.0.343.307 Fuel Adjustment Fee 92,000                        101,257                  9,257                   

001.000.0.343.306 Garbage Late Fees 13,000                        14,810                    1,810                   

001.000.0.343.901 Sanitation Reserve Fund 49,000                        50,769                    1,769                   
001.000.0.343.902 Equipment Reserve Fund 19,000                        19,732                    732                      

Total Sanitation 527,500                      553,880                  26,380                 

FINES AND FORFEITURES

001.000.0.351.000 Police Fines ‐ (M) 20,000                        8,566                       (11,434)               

001.000.0.351.100 Police Education 2,000                          816                          (1,184)                 

001.000.0.351.300 Police Detail 3,000                          3,685                       685                      

001.000.0.352.000 Library Fines 1,500                          1,559                       59                        
001.000.0.349.400 Restitution 1,500                          1,822                       322                      

Total Fines & Forfeitures 28,000                        16,448                    (11,552)               

RENTALS

001.000.0.362.030 Rental ‐ Highlands 3,000                          3,575                       575                      

001.000.0.362.032 Rental ‐ Mackay Estates 22,000                        27,626                    5,626                   

001.000.0.362.033 Rental ‐ Cancellation Fee 1,000                          4,100                       3,100                   

001.000.0.362.034 Rental ‐ Lions Park 1,000                          1,300                       300                      

001.000.0.362.038 Rental ‐ Tower 110,000                      112,486                  2,486                   
001.000.0.362.035 Rental ‐ Ball Field 300                              ‐                           (300)                     

Total Rentals 137,300                      149,087                  11,787                 

INTEREST EARNED

001.000.0.361.000 Interest Income 8,000                          11,333                    3,333                   
001.000.0.361.100 Interest ‐ Investments ‐                               92                            92                        

Total Interest 8,000                          11,425                    3,425                   

Page 2 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

MISCELLANEOUS

001.000.0.365.000 Sale of Surplus Property 6,000                          568                          (5,432)                 

001.000.0.319.100 Motor Fuel Tax Refund ‐ (M) 5,000                          5,046                       46                        

001.000.0.366.100 Police Department Donations ‐                               2,143                       2,143                   

001.000.0.366.300 Bluegrass Bash 7,000                          3,412                       (3,588)                 

001.000.0.366.400 Recreation Donations 1,000                          471                          (529)                     

001.000.0.369.000 Miscellaneous Income 10,000                        13,657                    3,657                   

001.000.0.369.100 Storage 1,000                          500                          (500)                     

001.000.0.369.200 Grillin & Chillin 3,000                          1,594                       (1,406)                 

001.000.0.369.300 Insurance Proceeds 9,670                          12,057                    2,387                   

001.000.0.369.400 Event Reimbursement 1,200                          1,475                       275                      

001.000.0.369.500 Ridge League Receipts 1,500                          80                            (1,420)                 

001.000.0.369.600 Veteran's Memorial ‐                               600                          600                      
001.000.0.369.700 Centennial Merchandise ‐                               2,663                       2,663                   

Total Miscellaneous 45,370                        44,266                    (1,104)                 

SUBTOTAL PRIOR TO TRANSFERS 3,723,605                  4,082,880               359,275              

TRANSFERS

001.000.0.381.314 Local Option Gas Tax 73,600                        73,600                    ‐                       

Public Safety Impact Fees ‐                               30,200                    30,200                 

001.000.0.381.402 Interfund Transfer 239,515                      239,515                  ‐                       

Sanitation Equipment Reserve ‐                               850                          850                      

General Government Impact Fees ‐                               98,513                    98,513                 

001.000.0.381.403 Cost Allocation 91,000                        91,000                    ‐                       
001.000.0.381.850 Reserve ‐ Leet Fund 2,000                          ‐                           (2,000)                 

Total Transfers 406,115                      533,678                  127,563              

‐                       

TOTAL ALL REVENUES 4,129,720                  4,616,558               486,838              

Page 3 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

GENERAL GOVERNMENT ‐                       

001.510.0.422.000 General Employees Retirement 180,750                      177,969                  (2,781)                 

001.510.0.422.100 Public Safety Retirement 107,250                      108,161                  911                      

001.510.0.423.000 Group Health Insurance 329,625                      305,000                  (24,625)               

001.510.0.423.100 HRA Deductible Reimbursement 2,000                          2,000                       ‐                       

001.510.0.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 65,000                        65,000                    ‐                       

001.510.0.425.000 Unemployment Compensation 1,000                          ‐                           (1,000)                 

001.510.0.432.000 Accounting & Auditing 46,300                        55,440                    9,140                   

001.510.0.433.000 CRA Expenses ‐                               640                          640                      

001.510.0.434.000 Contractual Services 24,000                        15,000                    (9,000)                 

001.510.0.434.100 Cell Tower Consultant 5,000                          8,400                       3,400                   

001.510.0.434.200 Salary Survey 2,500                          4,500                       2,000                   

001.510.0.440.200 Employee Christmas Benefit 3,500                          3,599                       99                        

001.510.0.440.201 Ridge League Dinner 1,000                          ‐                           (1,000)                 

001.510.0.440.400 Tuition Assistance 3,000                          1,989                       (1,011)                 

001.510.0.445.000 Property & Liability 113,100                      105,000                  (8,100)                 

001.510.0.449.000 Insurance Claims 2,000                          5,000                       3,000                   

001.510.0.452.300 IT ‐ Software & Hardware 21,000                        26,065                    5,065                   

001.510.0.464.200 Centennial 15,000                        31,867                    16,867                 

001.510.0.480.000 CDL Assistance 1,000                          ‐                           (1,000)                 

001.510.0.510.979 Fire Engine Reserve 50,000                        50,000                    ‐                       

Building Permit Reserve ‐                               12,760                    12,760                 

Police Auxiliary Fund ‐                               2,143                       2,143                   

Equipment ( 1/2 Back Hoe) 45,000                    45,000                 

Local Option Gas Tax  4,322                       4,322                   

001.510.0.510.991 Property & liability Contra (106,110)                    (105,000)                 1,110                   

001.510.0.510.992 Workers Comp Contra (65,000)                       (65,000)                   ‐                       

001.510.0.510.993 Health Insurance Contra (329,625)                    (305,000)                 24,625                 

001.510.0.510.994 Public Safety Retirement Contra (107,250)                    (108,161)                 (911)                     

001.510.0.510.995 General Employees Retirement  (180,750)                    (177,969)                 2,781                   

001.510.0.510.996 Sanitation Vehicle Reserve 49,000                        50,769                    1,769                   

001.510.0.510.997 Sanitation Equipment Reserve 19,000                        ‐                           (19,000)               

001.510.0.510.999 Contingencies 7,265                          ‐                           (7,265)                 
001.510.0.531.000 Donations 5,000                          7,000                       2,000                   

Total General Government 264,555                      326,494                  61,939                 

Page 4 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

CITY ATTORNEY ‐                       

001.514.0.431.400 Legal 63,000                        68,378                    5,378                   

CITY COMMISSION

001.511.0.411.000 Salaries & Wages 13,200                        13,200                    ‐                       

001.511.0.421.000 FICA Expense 1,010                          1,010                       ‐                       

001.511.0.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 125                              125                          ‐                       

001.511.0.440.300 Training & Travel 8,000                          7,850                       (150)                     

001.511.0.443.200 Electric 5,500                          5,875                       375                      

001.511.0.445.000 Property & Liability 19,860                        18,454                    (1,406)                 

001.511.0.451.000 Office Supplies 500                              69                            (431)                     

001.511.0.452.000 Operating Supplies 1,000                          915                          (85)                       

001.511.0.452.940 Uniforms & Shoes 800                              ‐                           (800)                     
001.511.0.454.000 Subscriptions & Memberships 1,250                          1,368                       118                      

Total City Commission 51,245                        48,866                    (2,379)                 

Page 5 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

CITY ADMINISTRATION

001.512.1.412.000 Salaries & Wages 141,910                      160,666                  18,756                 

001.512.1.421.000 FICA Expense 14,200                        11,370                    (2,830)                 

001.512.1.422.000 Retirement 21,240                        25,695                    4,455                   

001.512.1.423.000 Life & Health Insurance 10,985                        9,426                       (1,559)                 

001.512.1.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 1,440                          1,438                       (2)                         

001.512.1.431.200 Recording Escrow 500                              ‐                           (500)                     

001.512.1.431.500 Employee Exams ‐                               60                            60                        

001.512.1.434.600 Municipal Code Corp 3,000                          3,316                       316                      

001.512.1.440.300 Training & Travel 4,000                          1,893                       (2,107)                 

001.512.1.440.500 Expense Allowance 5,000                          5,563                       563                      

001.512.1.441.000 Communications 2,000                          2,625                       625                      

001.512.1.441.100 Cell Phone ‐                               150                          150                      

001.512.1.443.200 Electric 2,000                          1,373                       (627)                     

001.512.1.446.000 R & M Services 500                              336                          (164)                     

001.512.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Auto 500                              138                          (362)                     

001.512.1.446.120 R & M ‐ Copier 3,500                          2,608                       (892)                     

001.512.1.446.348 R & M ‐ Software 2,500                          1,500                       (1,000)                 

001.512.1.449.000 Legal Advertisement 6,000                          9,947                       3,947                   

001.512.1.451.000 Office Supplies 500                              1,185                       685                      

001.512.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 3,000                          1,412                       (1,588)                 

001.512.1.452.700 Fuel 500                              230                          (270)                     

001.512.1.453.100 City Election 1,800                          1,877                       77                        
001.512.1.454.000 Subscriptions & Memberships 1,900                          1,674                       (226)                     

Total City Administration 226,975                      244,482                  17,507                 

FINANCE

001.513.0.412.000 Salaries & Wages 87,215                        87,462                    247                      

001.513.0.414.000 Overtime 100                              237                          137                      

001.513.0.421.000 FICA Expense 6,610                          6,133                       (477)                     

001.513.0.422.000 Retirement 13,890                        13,676                    (214)                     

001.513.0.423.000 Life & Health Insurance 10,985                        10,971                    (14)                       

001.513.0.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 620                              619                          (1)                         

001.513.0.431.500 Employee Exams 50                                ‐                           (50)                       

001.513.0.433.000 Bank Service Charges 500                              25                            (475)                     

001.513.0.440.300 Training & Travel 1,500                          2,069                       569                      

001.513.0.441.000 Communications 2,000                          2,753                       753                      

001.513.0.443.200 Electric 2,000                          1,373                       (627)                     

001.513.0.446.000 R & M Services 1,000                          600                          (400)                     

001.513.0.446.348 R & M ‐ Software 7,600                          8,500                       900                      

001.513.0.451.000 Office Supplies 1,000                          1,349                       349                      

001.513.0.452.000 Operating Supplies 2,000                          1,981                       (19)                       

001.513.0.452.940 Uniforms & Shoes 800                              518                          (282)                     
001.513.0.454.000 Subscriptions & Memberships 195                              230                          35                        

Total Finance 138,065                      138,496                  431                      

Page 6 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

POLICE DEPT ‐                       

001.521.1.412.000 Salaries & Wages 574,540                      553,286                  (21,254)               

001.521.1.414.000 Overtime Pay 4,000                          9,209                       5,209                   

001.521.1.421.000 FICA Expense 44,260                        42,758                    (1,502)                 

001.521.1.422.000 City Retirement Contribution 79,385                        79,542                    157                      

001.521.1.422.100 State Retirement Contribution 31,535                        32,132                    597                      

001.521.1.423.000 Life & Health Insurance 87,900                        81,280                    (6,620)                 

001.521.1.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 14,155                        14,139                    (16)                       

001.521.1.431.500 Employee Exams 1,000                          1,700                       700                      

001.521.1.440.300 Training & Travel 4,000                          5,752                       1,752                   

001.521.1.441.000 Communications 7,500                          6,946                       (554)                     

001.521.1.441.100 Cell Phone 1,800                          1,718                       (82)                       

001.521.1.443.200 Electric 8,000                          11,618                    3,618                   

001.521.1.445.000 Property & Liability 5,320                          4,940                       (380)                     

001.521.1.445.500 Special Risk Ins. 550                              458                          (92)                       

001.521.1.446.000 R & M Services 1,000                          8,690                       7,690                   

001.521.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Auto 10,000                        9,220                       (780)                     

001.521.1.446.120 R & M ‐ Copier 2,700                          2,164                       (536)                     

001.521.1.446.200 R & M ‐ Radios 3,500                          3,417                       (83)                       

001.521.1.446.700 R & M ‐ IT Contract 3,000                          2,550                       (450)                     

001.521.1.449.000 Contractual Services 4,500                          1,684                       (2,816)                 

001.521.1.451.000 Office Supplies 1,000                          1,449                       449                      

001.521.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 3,000                          1,577                       (1,423)                 

001.521.1.452.012 K‐9 Expenses 1,000                          782                          (218)                     

001.521.1.452.100 Computer Replacement 2,500                          1,880                       (620)                     

001.521.1.452.700 Fuel 27,000                        20,749                    (6,251)                 

001.521.1.452.940 Uniforms & Shoes 4,000                          4,458                       458                      

001.521.1.454.000 Subscriptions & Memberships 300                              350                          50                        

001.521.1.464.100 Capital ‐ Vehicle 30,000                        30,927                    927                      
001.521.1.464.200 Capital ‐ Grant Equipment 10,190                        12,159                    1,969                   

Total Police Dept 967,635                      947,534                  (20,101)               

Page 7 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

FIRE DEPT

001.522.1.412.000 Salaries & Wages 396,850                      340,611                  (56,239)               

001.522.1.413.000 Part Time Wages 40,400                        61,183                    20,783                 

001.522.1.414.000 Overtime Pay 2,000                          6,409                       4,409                   

001.522.1.421.000 FICA Expense 33,605                        31,056                    (2,549)                 

001.522.1.422.000 State Retirement Contribution 70,515                        76,326                    5,811                   

001.522.1.423.000 Life & Health Insurance 54,940                        48,552                    (6,388)                 

001.522.1.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 12,745                        12,731                    (14)                       

001.522.1.431.500 Employee Exams 3,000                          980                          (2,020)                 

001.522.1.440.300 Training & Travel 3,000                          2,973                       (27)                       

001.522.1.441.000 Communications 1,500                          1,640                       140                      

001.522.1.441.100 Cell Phone 1,200                          1,092                       (108)                     

001.522.1.443.200 Electric 6,000                          9,121                       3,121                   

001.522.1.445.000 Property & Liability 6,115                          5,685                       (430)                     

001.522.1.445.500 Special Risk Ins. 550                              458                          (92)                       

001.522.1.446.000 R & M Services 3,000                          2,929                       (71)                       

001.522.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Auto 13,000                        15,338                    2,338                   

001.522.1.446.110 R & M ‐ SCBA 1,500                          ‐                           (1,500)                 

001.522.1.446.200 R & M ‐ Radio 3,000                          3,000                       ‐                       

001.522.1.446.348 R & M ‐ Software 2,000                          765                          (1,235)                 

001.522.1.451.000 Office Supplies 500                              601                          101                      

001.522.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 2,500                          2,380                       (120)                     

001.522.1.452.140 Fire Prevention Program 1,000                          972                          (28)                       

001.522.1.452.700 Fuel 6,000                          5,154                       (846)                     

001.522.1.452.800 Diesel 3,500                          3,468                       (32)                       

001.522.1.452.940 Uniforms & Shoes 4,000                          3,001                       (999)                     

001.522.1.452.941 Bunker Gear ‐ Replacements 3,000                          ‐                           (3,000)                 

001.522.1.454.000 Subscriptions & Memberships 400                              230                          (170)                     
001.522.1.464.100 Capital ‐ Equipment 6,500                          6,424                       (76)                       

Total Fire Dept 682,320                      643,079                  (39,241)               

Page 8 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

001.524.1.412.000 Salaries & Wages 117,865                      120,668                  2,803                   

001.524.1.414.000 Overtime Pay 200                              188                          (12)                       

001.524.1.421.000 FICA Expense 8,995                          9,245                       250                      

001.524.1.422.000 Retirement 12,730                        12,534                    (196)                     

001.524.1.423.000 Life & Health Insurance 10,985                        10,972                    (13)                       

001.524.1.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 2,765                          2,762                       (3)                         

001.524.1.431.000 Professional Services 5,000                          4,583                       (417)                     

001.524.1.431.100 CFRPC Contract 18,000                        18,000                    ‐                       

001.524.1.431.200 Way Finding Sign Program ‐                               80,918                    80,918                 

001.524.1.431.500 Employee Exams 100                              ‐                           (100)                     

001.524.1.434.660 Contractual Service ‐ Magistrate 4,000                          3,035                       (965)                     

001.524.1.440.300 Training & Travel 2,000                          2,458                       458                      

001.524.1.441.000 Communications 2,400                          3,115                       715                      

001.524.1.441.100 Cell Phone 1,000                          546                          (454)                     

001.524.1.443.200 Electric 12,000                        11,750                    (250)                     

001.524.1.445.000 Property & Liability 1,110                          1,030                       (80)                       

001.524.1.446.000 R & M Services 500                              1,235                       735                      

001.524.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Auto 500                              215                          (285)                     

001.524.1.446.120 R & M ‐ Copier 6,500                          5,162                       (1,338)                 

001.524.1.446.220 R & M ‐ Lawn Mowing ‐                               455                          455                      

001.524.1.446.348 R & M ‐ Software 1,400                          900                          (500)                     

001.524.1.451.000 Office Supplies 500                              292                          (208)                     

001.524.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 1,500                          1,246                       (254)                     

001.524.1.452.700 Fuel 1,000                          816                          (184)                     
001.524.1.454.000 Subscriptions & Memberships 200                              322                          122                      

Total Community Development 211,250                      292,447                  81,197                 

Page 9 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN

001.540.1.412.000 Salaries & Wages 35,465                        35,775                    310                      

001.540.1.421.000 FICA Expense 2,715                          2,685                       (30)                       

001.540.1.422.000 Retirement 5,780                          5,691                       (89)                       

001.540.1.423.000 Life & Health Insurance 5,495                          5,492                       (3)                         

001.540.1.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 4,565                          4,560                       (5)                         

001.540.1.431.500 Employee Exams 300                              42                            (258)                     

001.540.1.440.300 Training & Travel 1,000                          170                          (830)                     

001.540.1.441.000 Communications 1,500                          3,014                       1,514                   

001.540.1.441.100 Cell Phone 1,000                          1,092                       92                        

001.540.1.443.200 Electric 1,500                          1,442                       (58)                       

001.540.1.445.000 Property & Liability 1,030                          956                          (74)                       

001.540.1.446.000 R & M Services 500                              ‐                           (500)                     

001.540.1.446.120 R & M ‐ Copier 1,000                          786                          (214)                     

001.540.1.451.000 Office Supplies 500                              487                          (13)                       

001.540.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 500                              560                          60                        

001.540.1.452.940 Uniforms & Shoes 4,000                          5,276                       1,276                   

001.540.1.454.000 Subscriptions & Memberships 200                              110                          (90)                       
001.540.1.458.903 Cost Allocation ‐ Stormwater (11,130)                       (11,130)                   ‐                       

Total PW Admin 55,920                        57,008                    1,088                   

BUILDING MAINT

001.519.1.412.000 Salaries & Wages 28,680                        31,586                    2,906                   

001.519.1.414.000 Overtime Pay 50                                4                               (46)                       

001.519.1.421.000 FICA Expense 2,195                          2,417                       222                      

001.519.1.422.000 Retirement 4,615                          4,544                       (71)                       

001.519.1.423.000 Life & Health Insurance 5,495                          5,455                       (40)                       

001.519.1.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 2,120                          2,118                       (2)                         

001.519.1.431.300 Engineering 5,000                          754                          (4,246)                 

001.519.1.441.000 Communications 1,400                          1,680                       280                      

001.519.1.443.200 Electric 500                              653                          153                      

001.519.1.445.000 Property & Liability 3,260                          3,027                       (233)                     

001.519.1.446.000 R & M Services 10,000                        19,451                    9,451                   

001.519.1.446.100 R & M Projects 30,000                        25,043                    (4,957)                 

001.519.1.446.300 Land Swap with IFAS ‐                               98,469                    98,469                 

001.519.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 11,000                        20,026                    9,026                   

001.519.1.452.940 Uniforms & Shoes 100                              ‐                           (100)                     
001.519.1.464.100 Capital ‐ Bldg Improvements ‐                               40,901                    40,901                 

Total Bldg Maint 104,415                      256,128                  151,713              

Page 10 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

SANITATION

001.534.1.412.000 Salaries & Wages 73,790                        71,417                    (2,373)                 

001.534.1.414.000 Overtime Pay 1,000                          1,717                       717                      

001.534.1.421.000 FICA Expense 5,645                          5,570                       (75)                       

001.534.1.422.000 Retirement 11,825                        11,643                    (182)                     

001.534.1.423.000 Life & Health Insurance 16,480                        15,961                    (519)                     

001.534.1.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 7,180                          7,172                       (8)                         

001.534.1.431.500 Employee Exams 750                              211                          (539)                     

001.534.1.434.100 Contractual Services ‐                               289                          289                      

001.534.1.434.200 Recycling ‐ City Portion 49,000                        49,221                    221                      

001.534.1.445.000 Property & Liability 6,355                          5,937                       (418)                     

001.534.1.446.000 R & M Services 1,000                          101                          (899)                     

001.534.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Auto 25,000                        21,005                    (3,995)                 

001.534.1.449.110 Disposal Fees ‐ Polk County 60,000                        76,188                    16,188                 

001.534.1.449.150 Disposal Fees ‐ Brush 23,000                        24,340                    1,340                   

001.534.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 500                              665                          165                      

001.534.1.452.800 Diesel 25,000                        29,759                    4,759                   
001.534.1.464.100 Capital ‐ Equipment ‐                               20,566                    20,566                 

Total Sanitation 306,525                      341,762                  35,237                 

Page 11 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

ROADS AND STEETS

001.541.1.412.000 Salaries & Wages 119,335                      106,570                  (12,765)               

001.541.1.414.000 Overtime Pay 5,000                          4,694                       (306)                     

001.541.1.421.000 FICA Expense 9,420                          8,391                       (1,029)                 

001.541.1.422.000 Retirement 18,880                        18,590                    (290)                     

001.541.1.423.000 Life & Health Insurance 27,470                        26,984                    (486)                     

001.541.1.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 7,940                          7,931                       (9)                         

001.541.1.431.300 Engineering 1,000                          ‐                           (1,000)                 

001.541.1.431.500 Employee Exams 400                              231                          (169)                     

001.541.1.434.000 Contractual Services ‐                               5,603                       5,603                   

001.541.1.443.200 Electric 56,000                        57,112                    1,112                   

001.541.1.444.100 Rental Equipment 1,000                          ‐                           (1,000)                 

001.541.1.445.000 Property & Liability 1,670                          1,554                       (116)                     

001.541.1.446.000 R & M Services 10,000                        11,038                    1,038                   

001.541.1.446.020 R & M ‐ Traffic Signs 3,000                          4,436                       1,436                   

001.541.1.446.080 R & M ‐ Traffic Signals 7,000                          5,203                       (1,797)                 

001.541.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Auto 11,000                        11,891                    891                      

001.541.1.446.200 R & M ‐ Street Sweeper Contract 10,000                        3,715                       (6,285)                 

001.541.1.446.280 R & M ‐ Street Lights 3,000                          1,859                       (1,141)                 

001.541.1.446.290 R & M ‐ Tree Maint 1,000                          7,405                       6,405                   

001.541.1.446.500 R & M ‐ Cemeteries 4,000                          3,161                       (839)                     

001.541.1.446.600 R & M ‐ Right of Way 40,000                        34,812                    (5,188)                 

001.541.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 5,000                          8,803                       3,803                   

001.541.1.452.700 Fuel 17,000                        17,885                    885                      

001.541.1.452.800 Diesel Charges 3,000                          1,345                       (1,655)                 

001.541.1.452.940 Uniforms & Shoes ‐                               163                          163                      

001.541.1.453.000 Road & Sidewalk Repair 12,000                        21,528                    9,528                   

001.541.1.453.100 Road & Street Paving 150,000                      151,812                  1,812                   

001.541.1.463.000 Capital ‐ Bldg Improvement ‐                               59,862                    59,862                 
001.541.1.464.000 Capital ‐ Machinery & Equipment 53,000                        13,343                    (39,657)               

Total Streets 577,115                      595,921                  18,806                 

Page 12 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

CENTRAL GARAGE & MOTOR POOL

001.589.1.412.000 Salaries & Wages 34,045                        32,296                    (1,749)                 

001.589.1.414.000 Overtime Pay 300                              293                          (7)                         

001.589.1.421.000 FICA Expense 2,595                          2,480                       (115)                     

001.589.1.422.000 Retirement 5,475                          5,391                       (84)                       

001.589.1.423.000 Life & Health Insurance 5,495                          5,040                       (455)                     

001.589.1.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 775                              774                          (1)                         

001.589.1.431.000 Employee Exams 100                              127                          27                        

001.589.1.441.000 Communications 500                              240                          (260)                     

001.589.1.443.200 Electric 3,000                          3,535                       535                      

001.589.1.445.000 Property & Liability 11,515                        10,699                    (816)                     

001.589.1.446.000 R & M Services 500                              55                            (445)                     

001.589.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Auto 500                              294                          (206)                     

001.589.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 2,000                          7,949                       5,949                   

001.589.1.452.300 IT ‐ Software & Hardware 100                              ‐                           (100)                     

001.589.1.452.700 Fuel 100                              78                            (22)                       

001.589.1.452.800 Supplies ‐ Diesel 31,200                        31,050                    (150)                     

001.589.1.452.900 Supplies ‐ Gas & Oil 79,800                        62,580                    (17,220)               

001.589.1.454.000 Subscriptions & Memberships 1,500                          1,500                       ‐                       

001.589.1.458.900 Reimbursement ‐ Labor (15,000)                       (10,762)                   4,238                   

001.589.1.458.901 Reimbursement ‐ Fuel (79,700)                       (73,321)                   6,379                   
001.589.1.458.902 Reimbursement ‐ Diesel (31,200)                       (36,571)                   (5,371)                 

Total CGMP 53,600                        43,727                    (9,873)                 

PARKS

001.572.1.412.000 Salaries & Wages 134,400                      128,587                  (5,813)                 

001.572.1.414.000 Overtime Pay 1,000                          1,693                       693                      

001.572.1.421.000 FICA Expense 10,280                        9,932                       (348)                     

001.572.1.422.000 Retirement 20,630                        20,313                    (317)                     

001.572.1.423.000 Life & Health Insurance 27,470                        21,900                    (5,570)                 

001.572.1.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 3,235                          3,231                       (4)                         

001.572.1.425.000 Unemployment Compensation ‐                               938                          938                      

001.572.1.431.500 Employee Exams 300                              572                          272                      

001.572.1.440.300 Training & Travel 300                              1,076                       776                      

001.572.1.441.000 Communications 1,500                          3,800                       2,300                   

001.572.1.441.100 Cell Phone 600                              590                          (10)                       

001.572.1.443.200 Electric 7,000                          8,577                       1,577                   

001.572.1.444.100 Rental Equipment 500                              132                          (368)                     

001.572.1.445.000 Property & Liability 2,780                          2,585                       (195)                     

001.572.1.446.000 R & M Services 6,000                          8,436                       2,436                   

001.572.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Auto 2,500                          3,581                       1,081                   

001.572.1.446.120 R & M ‐ Copier 2,000                          4,009                       2,009                   

001.572.1.452.200 Operating Supplies 10,000                        11,645                    1,645                   

001.572.1.452.700 Fuel 7,500                          9,064                       1,564                   

001.572.1.452.800 Diesel 500                              456                          (44)                       

001.572.1.452.940 Uniforms & Shoes 1,000                          1,672                       672                      
001.572.1.464.300 Veteran's Memorial ‐                               18,873                    18,873                 

Total Parks 239,495                      261,662                  22,167                 

Page 13 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

MACKAY ESTATES

001.572.2.441.000 Communications 600                              456                          (144)                     

001.572.2.443.200 Electric 6,000                          6,745                       745                      

001.572.2.445.000 Property & Liability 6,195                          5,758                       (437)                     

001.572.2.446.000 R & M Services 4,000                          5,976                       1,976                   

001.572.2.449.000 Contractual Maint Services 1,500                          3,700                       2,200                   
001.572.2.452.000 Operating Supplies 3,500                          6,318                       2,818                   

Total Mackay Estates 21,795                        28,953                    7,158                   

LIBRARY

001.571.1.413.000 Salaries & Wages 76,500                        73,655                    (2,845)                 

001.571.1.421.000 FICA Expense 5,835                          5,635                       (200)                     

001.571.1.422.000 Retirement 5,100                          5,022                       (78)                       

001.571.1.423.000 Life & Health Insurance 5,495                          5,492                       (3)                         

001.571.1.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 450                              449                          (1)                         

001.571.1.431.500 Employee Exams 100                              204                          104                      

001.571.1.440.300 Training & Travel 500                              10                            (490)                     

001.571.1.441.000 Communications 5,480                          3,397                       (2,083)                 

001.571.1.443.200 Electric 6,000                          7,500                       1,500                   

001.571.1.445.000 Property & Liability 1,350                          1,253                       (97)                       

001.571.1.446.000 R & M Services 500                              ‐                           (500)                     

001.571.1.446.120 R & M ‐ Copier 3,000                          2,039                       (961)                     

001.571.1.446.438 R & M ‐ Software 1,500                          917                          (583)                     

001.571.1.446.660 R & M ‐ Books 12,000                        12,063                    63                        

001.571.1.451.000 Office Supplies 1,000                          1,067                       67                        

001.571.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 3,000                          1,754                       (1,246)                 

001.571.1.452.160 Youth Programs 2,000                          2,265                       265                      

001.571.1.454.000 Subscriptions & Memberships 1,000                          1,883                       883                      
001.571.1.464.100 Capital ‐ Computers 5,000                          4,640                       (360)                     

Total Library 135,810                      129,245                  (6,565)                 

RECREATION

001.572.3.440.200 Employee Quarterly Meetings 1,500                          2,631                       1,131                   

001.572.3.446.000 R & M Services 2,500                          ‐                           (2,500)                 

001.572.3.448.000 Promotional Activities 15,000                        14,651                    (349)                     

001.572.3.451.000 Office Supplies 500                              201                          (299)                     

001.572.3.452.000 Operating Supplies 3,500                          ‐                           (3,500)                 
001.572.3.452.100 Summer Recreation Expenses 7,000                          10,043                    3,043                   

Total Recreation 30,000                        27,526                    (2,474)                 

‐                       

TOTAL GEN FUND EXPENDITURE 4,129,720                  4,451,708               321,988              

TOTAL GEN FUND REVENUE 4,129,720                  4,616,558               486,838              

164,850              

STORMWATER REVENUE

Page 14 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

401.000.0.343.900 Stormwater 55,000                        56,910                    1,910                   
Stormwater Reserve ‐                               20,353                    20,353                 

Total Revenue 55,000                        77,263                    22,263                 

STORMWATER EXPENDITURES

401.538.1.431.300 Engineering ‐ Master 10,000                        51,748                    41,748                 

401.538.1.432.000 Accounting & Auditing 700                              ‐                           (700)                     

401.538.1.434.000 Contractual Services 1,000                          750                          (250)                     

401.538.1.440.300 Training & Travel 500                              399                          (101)                     

401.538.1.443.200 Electric 160                              ‐                           (160)                     

401.538.1.446.000 R & M Services 4,000                          1,200                       (2,800)                 

401.538.1.446.100 R & M ‐  Auto 1,000                          ‐                           (1,000)                 

401.538.1.446.200 Street Sweeping Cont 10,000                        11,533                    1,533                   

401.538.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 500                              503                          3                           

401.538.1.452.700 Fuel 1,200                          ‐                           (1,200)                 

401.538.1.452.940 Subscriptions & Memberships 700                              ‐                           (700)                     

401.538.1.458.903 Cost Allocation 11,130                        11,130                    ‐                       
401.538.1.999.000 Contingencies 14,110                        ‐                           (14,110)               

Total Stormwater  55,000                        77,263                    22,263                 

Page 15 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

ENTERPRISE FUND REVENUE

401.000.0.343.302 Water Revenue 600,000                      622,068                  22,068                 

401.000.0.343.303 Water Adjustments ‐                               (2,530)                     (2,530)                 

401.000.0.343.308 Temp Water Service 2,000                          3,100                       1,100                   

401.000.0.343.305 Irrigation 125,000                      149,210                  24,210                 

401.000.0.343.500 Sewer Revenue 1,200,000                  1,263,105               63,105                 

401.000.0.343.503 Sewer Adjustment ‐                               (575)                         (575)                     

401.000.0.343.550 Tap Fees 1,500                          13,950                    12,450                 

401.000.0.343.304 Turn On Fee 21,000                        26,795                    5,795                   

401.000.0.365.000 Scrap Metal 10,000                        725                          (9,275)                 

401.000.0.365.100 Hay Proceeds 1,000                          ‐                           (1,000)                 

401.000.0.369.000 Non Payment Fees 35,000                        37,560                    2,560                   

401.000.0.343.314 Water Meter Fee 12,000                        100,500                  88,500                 

401.000.0.343.310 NSF Check Fee 1,500                          840                          (660)                     

401.000.0.343.306 Late Fees 51,000                        51,240                    240                      

401.000.0.343.312 Turn Off Fee 16,000                        18,610                    2,610                   

401.000.0.343.317 Service Work Orders 500                              645                          145                      

401.000.0.343.311 Bad Debt Collections 2,000                          2,625                       625                      

401.000.0.361.000 Interest ‐ Bank 8,000                          20,098                    12,098                 

401.000.0.361.100 Interest ‐ Investment ‐                               610                          610                      

401.000.0.384.100 Wastewater Reserve 30,000                        (30,000)               

Water Impact Fees ‐                               98,470                    98,470                 

Wastewater Impact Fees ‐                               91,913                    91,913                 
401.000.0.349.110 Cash Over/Short ‐                               205                          205                      

Total Revenue 2,116,500                  2,499,164               382,664              

Page 16 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

WATER OPERATIONS

401.533.2.412.000 Salaries & Wages 10,225                        13,101                    2,876                   

401.533.2.421.000 FICA Expense 775                              922                          147                      

401.533.2.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 1,455                          1,453                       (2)                         

401.533.2.431.300 Engineering 10,000                        5,753                       (4,247)                 

401.533.2.434.000 Contractual Services 5,000                          9,911                       4,911                   

401.533.2.434.100 Engineering‐ Water M 14,000                        7,000                       (7,000)                 

401.533.2.440.100 Land Leases 1,500                          3,178                       1,678                   

401.533.2.440.300 Training & Travel 500                              1,115                       615                      

401.533.2.443.200 Electric 38,000                        41,988                    3,988                   

401.533.2.445.000 Property & Liability 7,940                          7,378                       (562)                     

401.533.2.446.000 R & M Services 30,000                        36,411                    6,411                   

401.533.2.446.100 R & M ‐ Auto 500                              25                            (475)                     

401.533.2.446.200 R & M ‐ Water Tower 500                              ‐                           (500)                     

401.533.2.452.000 Operating Supplies 1,500                          384                          (1,116)                 

401.533.2.452.600 Chemicals 42,000                        48,937                    6,937                   

401.533.2.452.700 Fuel 3,000                          ‐                           (3,000)                 

401.533.2.454.000 Subscriptions & Member 600                              560                          (40)                       
401.533.2.463.800 Water Improvements ‐New  ‐                               6,557                       6,557                   

Total Water Operations 167,495                      184,673                  17,178                 

WASTE WATER OPERATIONS ‐                       

401.535.1.412.000 Salaries & Wages 88,735                        88,349                    (386)                     

401.535.1.414.000 Overtime Pay 4,000                          2,503                       (1,497)                 

401.535.1.421.000 FICA Expense 7,095                          6,851                       (244)                     

401.535.1.422.000 Retirement 14,220                        14,001                    (219)                     

401.535.1.423.000 Life & Health Insurance 16,480                        16,466                    (14)                       

401.535.1.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 1,860                          1,858                       (2)                         

401.535.1.431.300 Engineering 15,000                        30,621                    15,621                 

401.535.1.431.500 Employee Exams 300                              42                            (258)                     

401.535.1.434.100 Contractual Services 500                              ‐                           (500)                     

401.535.1.434.500 Sampling of Wells 12,000                        15,513                    3,513                   

401.535.1.434.510 Sludge Hauling 3,000                          20,757                    17,757                 

401.535.1.440.300 Training & Travel 500                              1,051                       551                      

401.535.1.441.000 Communications 8,000                          6,540                       (1,460)                 

401.535.1.441.100 Cell Phone 600                              457                          (143)                     

401.535.1.443.200 Electric 80,000                        80,112                    112                      

401.535.1.445.000 Property & Liability 27,960                        25,979                    (1,981)                 

401.535.1.446.000 R & M Services 35,000                        42,261                    7,261                   

401.535.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Auto 2,000                          380                          (1,620)                 

401.535.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 2,000                          2,212                       212                      

401.535.1.452.600 Chemicals 90,000                        105,472                  15,472                 

401.535.1.452.700 Fuel 500                              579                          79                        

401.535.1.452.800 Diesel Fuel 200                              ‐                           (200)                     
401.535.1.452.940 Uniforms & Shoes 750                              60                            (690)                     

Total Wastewater  410,700                      462,064                  51,364                 

SUMMIT GROVE

Page 17 of 18



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL  VARIANCE

401.535.2.443.200 Electric 7,000                          6,884                       (116)                     

401.535.2.445.000 Property & Liability 3,655                          3,395                       (260)                     

401.535.2.446.000 R & M ‐ Services 5,000                          17,834                    12,834                 

401.535.2.452.000 Operating Supplies 500                              ‐                           (500)                     
401.535.2.464.100 Spray field Expansion ‐                               35,880                    35,880                 

Total Summit Grove 16,155                        63,993                    47,838                 

SERVICE ‐                       

401.536.1.412.000 Salaries & Wages 245,695                      237,627                  (8,068)                 

401.536.1.414.000 Overtime Pay 6,000                          4,238                       (1,762)                 

401.536.1.421.000 FICA Expense 19,000                        18,414                    (586)                     

401.536.1.422.000 Retirement 38,615                        38,021                    (594)                     

401.536.1.423.000 Life & Health Insurance 43,950                        42,206                    (1,744)                 

401.536.1.424.000 Workers Comp Insurance 3,585                          3,581                       (4)                         

401.536.1.425.000 Unemployment Comp ‐                               1,917                       1,917                   

401.536.1.431.300 Engineering 5,000                          400                          (4,600)                 

401.536.1.431.500 Employee Exams 500                              161                          (339)                     

401.536.1.440.300 Training & Travel 1,000                          460                          (540)                     

401.536.1.441.000 Communications 21,000                        23,320                    2,320                   

401.536.1.441.100 Cell Phone 1,800                          1,683                       (117)                     

401.536.1.443.200 Electric 2,500                          1,830                       (670)                     

401.536.1.444.100 Rental Equipment 500                              ‐                           (500)                     

401.536.1.446.100 R & M ‐ Auto 10,000                        11,428                    1,428                   

401.536.1.446.120 R & M ‐ Copier 1,400                          1,030                       (370)                     

401.536.1.446.348 R & M ‐ Software 3,500                          2,550                       (950)                     

401.536.1.446.350 R & M ‐ Water Lines 20,000                        24,340                    4,340                   

401.536.1.446.360 R & M ‐ Fire Hydrant 1,000                          918                          (82)                       

401.536.1.446.370 R & M ‐ Lift Station 70,000                        39,792                    (30,208)               

401.536.1.446.380 R & M ‐ Sewer Lines 10,000                        15,181                    5,181                   

401.536.1.452.000 Operating Supplies 5,000                          4,874                       (126)                     

401.536.1.452.700 Fuel 20,000                        18,819                    (1,181)                 

401.536.1.452.800 Diesel 1,500                          936                          (564)                     

401.536.1.452.900 Meter & Fittings ‐ N 18,000                        96,270                    78,270                 

401.536.1.452.940 Uniforms & Shoes 3,000                          4,785                       1,785                   

401.536.1.464.100 Outpost Water & Sewer ‐                               183,826                  183,826              

401.536.1.464.200 Capital ‐ Machinery  85,000                        86,118                    1,118                   
401.536.1.536.910 Interfund Transfer 330,515                      330,515                  ‐                       

Total Service 968,060                      1,195,240               227,180              

‐                       

DEBT SERVICE

401.000.0.517.716 Loan F‐EF Refinanced 238,445                      238,445                  ‐                       
401.000.0.517.719 Wastewater Loan 7190 315,645                      315,645                  ‐                       

Total Debt Service 554,090                      554,090                  ‐                       

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,116,500                  2,460,060               343,560              

TOTAL REVENUE 2,116,500                  2,499,164               382,664              

39,104                 

Page 18 of 18



LAKE ALFRED CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
NOVEMBER 16, 2015 

 
2.) DISCOVERY ACADEMY PARKING EXEMPTION 
 
 
ISSUE:  Discovery Academy of Lake Alfred is requesting approval to use the Florida 
Department of Education standards for school parking at the Discovery Academy Charter High 
School. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 Proposed Site Development Plan 
 Project Area Map 
 Location map 
 Staff Report with Parking Analysis 
 Planning Board Meeting Minutes excerpt 10/21/15 

 
ANALYSIS: The Site Development Plan for the Discovery Academy’s proposed High School 
was reviewed by the Planning Board and approved at their October 21, 2015 meeting. The 
subject site consists of 55 total acres, 40 of which are proposed to be used for the future site of 
the high school. The applicant intends to build the school and facilities in a phased approach, 
with Phase I focusing on 15 acres of the site. The total number of students proposed is 950, 
plus 64 staff and faculty.  

The item before the City Commission is a request to use Florida Building Code standards in lieu 
of the City’s applicable land development regulations for the site. City regulations would require 
395 paved parking spaces and the Florida Building Code would require 135 paved spaces. The 
proposed parking included in the site development plan is a compromise between the two 
standards with 194 paved parking spaces and 188 grass parking spaces for a total of 382 
parking spaces. Per section 3.03.02 of the City’s land development regulations the City 
Commission may approve the alternate parking standard for the site development plan.  

 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: No objections to this request.  







 

Proposed High School 
Project Site 



 
 
City of Lake Alfred  Phone:  (863) 291‐5748 
120 E. Pomelo Street  Fax: (863) 298‐5403 
Lake Alfred, FL  33850    www.mylakealfred.com 
 
 

Community Development 
Building   |   Code Enforcement    |    Planning      |     Zoning 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
PROJECT NAME:  DISCOVERY ACADEMY HIGH SCHOOL 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: DISCOVERY ACADEMY OF LAKE ALFRED, INC. 
 
REQUEST TYPE:  SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
HEARING DATES:  10-21-15 FOR PLANNING BOARD  

11-16-15 FOR CITY COMMISSION  
 

 
GENERAL DESCRIPTION: The site consists of 55 total acres, 40 of which are proposed to be 
used for the future site of the Discovery Academy Charter High School. The applicant intends to 
build the school and facilities in a phased approach, with Phase I focusing on 15 acres of the 
site. The total number of students after all phases are complete is 950, plus 64 staff and faculty.  
 
 
SURROUNDING USES:  The land uses surrounding the property are described in the following 
table: 
 

Northwest 
A/RRX 

Unincorporated Polk County 

North 
R-1AAA Cluster Single Family: 

City  

and; 

A/RRX 

Unincorporated Polk County 

Northeast 
A/RRX 

Unincorporated Polk County 

West 
A/RR 

Unincorporated Polk County 

Subject Property 
Public Buildings and Grounds 

Conservation 

City 

East 
R2 Cluster Multi-Family 

City  

And; 

RL-1/RL-3 

Unincorporated Polk County 

Southwest 
Public Buildings/Grounds 

City 

South 
Public Buildings/Grounds 

City 

Southeast 
R-1A Cluster Single Family 

City 

 
The request is compatible with the surrounding land uses.  To the northwest and northeast are 
established single family homes currently not in the City limits of Lake Alfred, directly north is 
the access road and beyond to Lake Alfred Estates, a single family cluster development in the 
city limits. To the east is pasture land with some agricultural uses, to the west is also pasture as 



STAFF REPORT  UPDATED 10-19-15 
Discovery Academy High School 
Site Development Plan 
 

Page 2 of 7  

well as the Polk Training Center facility. The properties to the southwest and south currently 
operate as Discovery Academy Middle School and Karen M. Seigel Acadamy. Southeast of the 
subject site is the Magnolia Ridge subdivision and Cypress Greens Golf Community.  
 
Sources:  Official Lake Alfred Zoning Map 
  Polk County GIS Data Viewer 
 
 
LAND USE AND ZONING: The property has a Future Land Use designation of Medium Density 
Residential and Conservation. The Lake Alfred Comprehensive Plan policy 1.19 defines 
Medium Density Residential as accommodating higher density uses, generally as multi-family 
with a maximum of 12 units per acre. Also, Policy 1.1.21 provides that schools are permitted in 
all land use classifications.  
 
The site received a zoning designation of Public Buildings and Grounds in October 2014. The 
zoning allows schools with submittal of a site development plan, requiring a minimum lot size of 
7,000 square feet, and floor area ratio of 2.0 as well as front setbacks at 25 feet, rear setbacks 
at 20 feet, and side setbacks at 10 feet.  
 
Sources:  2030 Lake Alfred Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Element Policies 1.1.9 and 1.1.21 
  Lake Alfred Unified Land Development Code Sections 2.04.01(B)(36) and 2.04.02.18 

 
 

PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES ANALYSIS: The proposed project demonstrates 
impacts on the City’s public facilities.   
 
 
A) Utilities: The City water plant has a maximum pumping capacity of 3 million gallons per day.  
The City’s water permit allows for pumping of 1.3 million gallons per day.  Currently, the City 
pumps 900,000 gallons per day, leaving approximately 30% capacity available. 
 
The City sewer treatment plant has expanded the available capacity to 1 million gallons per day, 
and is permitted to treat 900,000 gallons per day.  Current sewer usage is approximately 
450,000 gallons per day, leaving approximately 50% capacity available. 
 

TABLE 1: 
PRELIMINARY DAILY WATER AND WASTEWATER  

IMPACT ANALYSIS 
Students: 950 plus Faculty: 64 = 1,014 total persons 

Water 

Adopted LOS:  
130 gallons per person per 
day 
 
131,820 GPD 

9% increase 
water plant 
demand 

Proposed Usage: 
18 gallons per 0.6 
students 
28,500 GPD 
 
15 gallons per 0.6 
faculty 
1,600 GPD 
 
Irrigation 30”/yr x 
10acres 
3,000 GPD 

Wastewater 
Adopted LOS:  
76 gallons per person per 

9% increase 
wastewater 

Proposed Usage: 
18 gallons per day 



STAFF REPORT  UPDATED 10-19-15 
Discovery Academy High School 
Site Development Plan 
 

Page 3 of 7  

day 
 
77,064 GPD 

treatment 
demand 

per student 
17,100 GPD 
 
15 gallons per day 
per faculty 
960 GPD 
 

 
Sources:  City of Lake Alfred Public Works Department 

2030 Lake Alfred Comprehensive Plan Infrastructure Element Policy 3.1 
Lake Alfred Unified Land Development Code, Section 3.04.00  
 
 

B) Transportation: The applicant has identified improvements to Evenhouse Road and Creek 
Road, by dedicating additional rights-of-way and proposing widening to each road segment. A 
traffic study was performed in September 2015 by Traffic Planning and Design, Inc. for the 
project. Their recommendations indicate improvements will be needed at the site entrance, with 
a new left-turn lane to be added on Evenhouse Road. Also on-site stacking shall be provided on 
site.  
 

TABLE 2: 
PRELIMINARY PEAK HOUR TRIP GENERATION  

IMPACT ANALYSIS 
Use: High 

School  
Rate 

Weekday 
Daily 

Traffic 

Peak 
Period 
Rate 

Expected 
Units 

Calculated
Daily Trips 

Peak Trips Total 

Students 1.71 0.13 950 1,625 124 
Per 1,000 sq ft 12.89 0.97 88 1,134 85 

Employees 19.74 1.55 64 1,263 99 
  Total Peak Trips from Total Project 308 
      
Road Segment – 
Urban Collector 

(County) 

2014 
Annual 

Avg Daily 
Traffic 

Peak-Hour/Peak-
Season 

Peak-Hour Potential Peak-
Hour 

2-Hour 
Average 
Volume 

Current 
LOS 

Rating 

Directional 
Capacity 

Trips from 
Project (1/2 for 
each direction) 

CR 557 NB 11,000 416 C 740 570 
CR 557 SB 11,000 578 D 740 732 

      
 
Polk County controls the road segments for CR 557, Evenhouse Road and Creek Road 
adjacent to the project. Any improvements or necessary traffic studies that are required shall 
satisfactorily meet criteria set forth by Polk County prior to any construction commencing on the 
project.  
 
Sources:  2030 Lake Alfred Comprehensive Plan Transportation Element Policy 1.2 

Trip Generation Rates - 8th Edition ITE Trip Generation Report 
  Road segment data – Polk Transportation Planning Organization 2014 
  Traffic Impact Study from Traffic Planning and Design, Inc. September 2015 
 
C) Solid Waste: The City collects solid waste and recently began collection of recycled 
materials. Current capacity of solid waste collection is 12 tons daily and also 12 tons for 
recycling. The average daily solid waste collection is approximately 10 tons, whereas recycling 



STAFF REPORT  UPDATED 10-19-15 
Discovery Academy High School 
Site Development Plan 
 

Page 4 of 7  

is 6 tons. This equals 3.8 pounds of solid waste and 0.44 pounds of recycling per City resident 
per day, which exceeds the City’s adopted level of service standard of 8 pounds per person per 
day.  Solid waste collected in Lake Alfred is transferred to the Polk County Landfill, where 
capacity is planned for all municipalities in Polk County. Polk County has determined there is 
sufficient landfill capacity for the County, including Lake Alfred, to dispose household garbage 
for approximately 65 years. 
 

TABLE 3: 
PRELIMINARY SOLID WASTE/RECYCLING  

IMPACT ANALYSIS 
Students: 950 plus Faculty: 64 = 1,014 total persons 

Solid Waste 

Adopted LOS: 
8 pounds per person per day 
 
8,112 lbs/day 

10% increase on solid 
waste demand 

Recycling  

No adopted LOS standard due to 
previously being privately 
contracted 
 
 

12% increase on recycling 
demand 

 
**At this time, the City will not provide solid waste or recycling collection for the school. City 
Ordinance 1281-10 states they may utilize a private provider. However, information is included 
to demonstrate adequate capacity if private provider requirement is removed. 
 
Sources:  City of Lake Alfred Public Works Department 

2030 Lake Alfred Comprehensive Plan Infrastructure Element Policy 3.1 
Lake Alfred Code of Ordinances Section 42-8 

 
 
D) Drainage: The drainage pattern within Lake Alfred consists of a combination of surface 
drainage and storm sewers. All new development is required to meet Southwest Florida Water 
Management District standards to retain stormwater runoff, generally at a rate not exceeding 
that of pre-development. The current level of service standard is that stormwater management 
facilities for new development must be designed for a 25-year, 24-hour storm event. 
 
Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD) regulates all stormwater 
management systems and shall be the entity responsible for issuing a permit for the project.  
 
Sources:  City of Lake Alfred Public Works Department 

2030 Lake Alfred Comprehensive Plan Infrastructure Element Policy 3.1 
Lake Alfred Unified Land Development Code, Section 3.05.00 

 
 
SITE DEVELOPMENT CRITERIA REVIEW: The Lake Alfred Unified Land Development Code 
addresses specific criteria for review of those uses requiring a Site Development Plan. City staff 
and consultants have reviewed the site development plan against the following sections of the 
Code to ensure all requirements have been satisfied.  
 
 
A) Plans: The information included on plans satisfactorily meets the City’s requirements for site 
development plan review.  



STAFF REPORT  UPDATED 10-19-15 
Discovery Academy High School 
Site Development Plan 
 

Page 5 of 7  

 
TABLE 4: 

SITE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
 

Total Site Acreage 55 acres Phase I Site Acreage 15 acres 

Total Building Size (in 
square feet) 

88,000 sq ft 
(estimate) 

Phase I Building Size (in 
square feet) 

23,000 sq ft 
(estimate) 

Total Students 950 Phase I Students 350 

Total Faculty 64 Phase I Faculty 64 

 
Sources:  Lake Alfred Unified Land Development Code, Sections 7.05.00 and 3.09.12 
 
 
B) Parking 

TABLE 5: 
PARKING ANALYSIS 

Lake Alfred ULDC Requirements 

Senior High School 
0.4 parking spaces per student (all 
grades) 

380 vehicle parking 
spaces 

ADA-Accessible 
1 space per 25 regular parking 
spaces 

15 ADA spaces 

 Total spaces required per City: 395 

FL Building Code Requirements (adopted by FL Department of Education) 

Senior High School 
1 space per every 10 students 
(11th and 12th grade only=550 
students) 

55 student spaces 

Faculty and staff 1 space per every member 64 faculty spaces 

Visitors 1 space per every 100 students 10 visitor spaces 

ADA-Accessible 
1 space per 25 regular parking 
spaces 

6 ADA spaces 

 Total spaces required per FBC: 135 

Proposed Parking included in site development plan 

Paved Utilizing FBC method 
186 student, faculty and 
visitors spaces 

ADA-Accessible Utilizing FBC method 8 ADA spaces 

Grass (event and overflow) n/a 188 overflow spaces 

 Total spaces provided in plan:
194 paved 
188 grass 
Total: 382 

 
*The applicant is requesting consideration to utilize the Florida Building Code parking standards 
rather than the City’s Code requirements. Section 3.03.02 provides that the City Commission 
can determine the minimum number of parking spaces to be provided. 
 
Sources:  Lake Alfred Unified Land Development Code, Section 3.03.02 



STAFF REPORT  UPDATED 10-19-15 
Discovery Academy High School 
Site Development Plan 
 

Page 6 of 7  

  Florida Building Code, Section 423.10.2.8 
 
 
C) Access, Loading Areas, Sidewalks and Bikeways: A site development must provide 2 
access points for any school. If the project abuts a collector or arterial roadway, it must provide 
sidewalks adjacent to such roadways, and on at least one side of all streets within the 
development. Bikeways shall be integrated to any new roads or any improvements to existing 
roads. Pedestrian crosswalks will be necessary to provide circulation for schools, playgrounds, 
bus shelters/stops, or nearby shopping/retail centers and neighborhoods. Bicycle parking shall 
be provided at a minimum for 1 space per each student.* A single off-street loading space must 
be provided for every 20,000 square feet of building space to be constructed. 
 
All requirements have been provided in the proposed site development plan, *with the exception 
of bicycle parking facilities which will be determined by the City Commission in consideration 
with the applicant’s parking request. 
 
Sources:  Lake Alfred Unified Land Development Code, Sections 3.03.03 and 3.02.04 
  
  
E) Landscaping and Buffering standards: Each paved parking space requires 200 sq ft of 
canopy shading. Based on proposed plans, 194 paved parking spaces will be provided which 
will require 38,800 sq ft of canopy tree shaded areas. This can be provided in any combination 
of canopy trees. Generally, a live oak provides 2,000 sq ft of canopy so the site would need 
approximately 19 live oaks to meet the 38,000 sq ft requirement. Existing mature canopy trees 
on site can also be preserved to count towards requirement.  
 
All landscaped areas shall be provided with appropriate irrigation system. 
 
Buffer yard “C” required between Class VI (School) and Class I (single family detached) land 
uses as well as surrounding the paved parking area. 
 
Landscaping, canopy trees and buffer yards shall be designed and installed in accordance with 
Section 3.07.00.  Landscaping shall be provided in all setback areas according to Landscape 
Standard "D," including those where a solid face masonry wall may be required Setback areas 
include the front, side, and rear of the principal buildings and also includes wetlands. 
 
 
(continued on next page) 



STAFF REPORT  UPDATED 10-19-15 
Discovery Academy High School 
Site Development Plan 
 

Page 7 of 7  

 
 
 
Sources:  Lake Alfred Unified Land Development Code, Section 3.07.00 
  
 








